
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 
 
 

23 July 2019 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 1 August 2019 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2019 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 9  
 

 Report on the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan Timetable. 
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   HOUSING DELIVERY TEST ACTION PLAN (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan.  The Plan seeks to identify the main issues 
associated with housing delivery in the Borough and the main actions that can be 
taken by the Council and other parties to speed up delivery. 
 

8.   INTRODUCTION OF RESIDENT PERMIT SCHEME AND DOUBLE YELLOW 
LINES IN LAMBS CLOSE, CUFFLEY (Pages 19 - 30) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services), 
which sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory consultation 
and the recommended course of action.  

9.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION (Pages 
31 - 34) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan Timetable.  The Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan has 
been submitted and is currently undergoing public examination by an independent 
inspector.   

 
The timetable agreed in March 2019 was that the results and recommendations of 
this process would be presented to Councillors in September 2019 and the further 
hearing sessions would take place in November/December 2019.  The unexpected 
receipt of 10,000+ representations to the public consultation in addition to site 
analysis work and updating evidence has unfortunately created too much work to 
be achieved in this time. 
 

10.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 11 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  



 
PART II 

 

11.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman) 

S.Kasumu (Vice-Chairman) 
A.Chesterman 
B.Fitzsimon 
G.Hayes 
T.Kingsbury 
 
 

J.Quinton 
D.Richardson 
A Rohale 
P.Shah 
P.Zukowskyj 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
To be appointed 

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
All wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CPPP – 1 AUGUST 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
HOUSING DELIVERY TEST ACTION PLAN 
 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires councils to prepare an 

action plan where housing delivery has fallen below the housing requirement. 
 

1.2 The plan seeks to identify the main issues associated with housing delivery in the 
borough and the main actions that can be taken by the Council and other parties 
to speed up delivery. 
 

1.3 The plan reviews Government guidance, considers the views of relevant 
stakeholders and analyses existing data and other knowledge in order to identify 
a series of actions that will be taken over the coming months and years to help 
increase housing delivery. 
 

2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Panel agrees the Action Plan and the series of actions that the Council 

will seek to implement over coming months and years. 
 

3 Explanation 
 

3.1 Paragraph 75 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that 
“Where the housing delivery test indicates that delivery has fallen below 95% of 
the authority’s housing requirement over the previous three years, the authority 
should prepare an action plan in line with national planning guidance, to assess 
the causes of under-delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future 
years.” 
 

3.2 The housing delivery test is an annual measure of housing delivery which 
compares ‘total net homes delivered’ against ‘number of homes required’.  
Because the Council does not have a recently adopted Local Plan the number of 
homes required in Welwyn Hatfield is taken from the Government’s local housing 
need figures. 
 

3.3 The Government published the housing delivery test results in November 2018.  
It confirmed that Welwyn Hatfield had built 1,493 homes in the period 2015/16 - 
2017/18 against a target of 1,701 homes.  This equates to 88%. 
 

3.4 The Council therefore needs to prepare an action plan to assess the causes of 
under-delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future years.   
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Measurement_Rule_Book.pdf


3.5 The action plan reviews Government guidance to understand what is expected of 
it, considers the views of relevant stakeholders who were asked for their thoughts 
via an article in a recent Local Plan newsletter, analyses existing data and other 
knowledge to attempt to identify any issues that might be delaying housing 
delivery and sets out a series of actions that will be taken over coming months 
and years to help increase housing delivery. 
 

3.6 In summary, the key actions are: 
 
 Continue to determine planning applications for housing schemes as fast 

as reasonably possible. 
 
 Continue to consider the necessity of planning conditions for housing 

permissions. 
 
 Continue to discharge planning conditions for housing schemes as fast as 

reasonably possible. 
 
 Continue to prepare Section 106 agreements as fast as reasonably 

possible. 
 

 Progress the adoption of the Local Plan and the release of land from the 
green belt to enable urban extensions to come forward for development 
around towns and villages. 

 
 Review the determination of minor applications, particularly those that are 

refused, to see whether there is more than can be done to get them 
approved. 

 
4 Legal Implications 

 
4.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report.  The NPPF requires 

councils in our situation to prepare an action plan, although it does not state what 
the implications will be if a plan is not prepared.   
 

5 Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.  The work to 
prepare the action plan has been carried out by officers and the actions will be 
implemented by officers as part of their day-to-day duties. 
 

6 Risk Management Implications 
 

6.1 The Housing Delivery Test Action Plan will be a key document to consider when 
determining planning applications, particularly in circumstances where the 
Council is minded to refuse planning permission and especially if such decisions 
are appealed, as the plan will form part of the evidence base that the Council is 
doing all it reasonably can to bring sites forward for development. 
 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 
 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications associated with this report. 
 

  

Page 6



8 Procurement Implications 
 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this report. 
 

9 Climate Change Implications 
 

9.1 There are no direct climate change implications associated with this report.  The 
Local Plan Sustainability Appraisal recognises the climate change implications of 
housing development. 
 

10 Human Resources Implications 
 

10.1 There are no human resources implications associated with this report.  The 
work to prepare the action plan has been carried out by officers and the actions 
will be implemented by officers as part of their day-to-day duties. 
 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications 
 

11.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications associated with this report.  
The Local Plan Sustainability Appraisal recognises the health and wellbeing 
implications of housing development. 
 

12 Communications and Engagement Implications 
 

12.1 There are no communications implications associated with this report.  The 
action plan will be published on the planning pages of the Council’s website and 
reported in the next edition of the Local Plan newsletter which is sent to about 
2,000 organisations and individuals on the consultation database. 
 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 
 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Priority 3 Our Housing to plan for current and future needs. 
 

14 Equalities and Diversity 
 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 
 

Name of author Colin Haigh 
Title Head of Planning 
Date July 2019 
 
Appendices: 
 
Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

August 2019 
 

Page 9



Executive Summary 
 
1. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires councils to prepare an 

action plan where housing delivery has fallen below their housing requirement. 
 
2. This Action Plan seeks to identify the main issues associated with housing delivery in 

the borough and the main actions that can be taken by the Council and other parties 
to speed up delivery. 

 
3. The plan reviews Government guidance, considers the views of relevant 

stakeholders and analyses existing data and other knowledge in order to identify a 
series of actions that will be taken over the coming months and years to help 
increase housing delivery. 

 
4. In summary these actions are: 
 

 Continue to determine planning applications for housing schemes as fast as 
reasonably possible. 
 

 Continue to consider the necessity of planning conditions for housing 
permissions. 
 

 Continue to discharge planning conditions for housing schemes as fast as 
reasonably possible. 
 

 Continue to prepare Section 106 agreements as fast as reasonably possible. 
 

 Work with Hertfordshire County Council to prepare Section 106 agreements 
involving contributions for their services as fast as reasonably possible. 
 

 Progress the adoption of the Local Plan and the release of land from the green 
belt to enable urban extensions to come forward for development around towns 
and villages. 
 

 Review the determination of minor applications, particularly those that are 
refused, to see whether there is more than can be done to get them approved. 

 

Page 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


Introduction 
 
5. Paragraph 75 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “Where 

the housing delivery test indicates that delivery has fallen below 95% of the 
authority’s housing requirement over the previous three years, the authority should 
prepare an action plan in line with national planning guidance, to assess the causes 
of under-delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future years.” 

 
6. The housing delivery test is an annual measure of housing delivery which compares 

‘total net homes delivered’ against ‘number of homes required’.  Because the Council 
does not have a recently adopted Local Plan the number of homes required in 
Welwyn Hatfield is taken from the Government’s local housing need figures. 

 
7. The Government published the housing delivery test results in November 2018.  It 

confirmed that Welwyn Hatfield had built 1,493 homes in the period 2015/16 - 
2017/18 against a target of 1,701 homes.  This equates to 88%. 

 
8. The Council therefore needs to prepare an action plan to assess the causes of 

under-delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future years.   
 
9. The Council also needs to add a 5% buffer to its five year housing land supply. 
 
10. It is worth noting that if housing delivery was below 85% then the Council would need 

to add a 20% buffer to its five year housing land supply and that if housing delivery 
was below 25% then the Council should apply the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development to planning decisions. 

 
11. It is also important to note that the housing delivery test will become more 

challenging in future years, so the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
will apply if delivery is below 45% in 2019 and below 75% in 2020. 

 
Guidance 
 
12. The Government’s Planning Practice Guidance contains useful guidance on the 

housing delivery test.  It advises that action plans should be transparent and publicly 
accessible documents.  It is up to each council whether they consult on their action 
plan but they should be prepared with the involvement of relevant stakeholders such 
as developers, land promoters, land owners, infrastructure providers, neighbouring 
authorities and county councils.  They should be produced in a timely fashion, within 
six months of the test results (by 19 August 2020).  It identifies issues that councils 
might want to consider and actions that councils and other stakeholders might want 
to take. 

 

Page 11

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Measurement_Rule_Book.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/housing-and-economic-land-availability-assessment#housing-delivery-test


Consultation 
 
13. The Council included an article about the requirement to prepare an action plan in its 

May 2019 newsletter to everyone registered on the Local Plan consultation database 
(which currently contains to about 2,000 statutory bodies, businesses and 
individuals). 

 

 
Housing Delivery Action Plan 
  
The Government has recently published its housing delivery test figures for the 
three year period 2015/16 to 2017/18. 
  
They show that Welwyn Hatfield needed to build 1,701 homes, but actually built 
1,493 homes (equivalent to 88%).  It means that the Council must now publish an 
action plan which identifies the reasons for under-delivery, ways to reduce the risk 
of further under-delivery and measures to improve levels of delivery.   
  
Government guidance encourages the Council to collaborate with key stakeholders 
such as land promoters, developers and infrastructure providers to produce the 
action plan. We therefore welcome comments on how the Council can reduce 
under-delivery and improve housing delivery rates in future years.  Useful 
comments will be incorporated into a draft action plan that will be presented to 
Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel (CPPP) later this year, in order to be 
published by the 19 August 2019 deadline. 
 

 
14. The Council received one response to this article, which made the following 

observations:  
 

“In our opinion, the key component to reducing the under-delivery of housing within 
the Borough is to ensure that you have an adopted Local Plan that allocates 
sufficient deliverable and developable sites to enable targets to be met throughout 
the adopted plan period.  During the public examination, the Inspector indicated that 
the development strategy was not sound because, in part, there was insufficient 
justification for the failure to identify sufficient developable sites within the green belt 
to accommodate the identified need.  Notably, for a site to be developable there 
should be a reasonable prospect that it will be available and could be viably 
developed at the point envisaged and, in our opinion, the Council has not previously 
taken viability into account sufficiently in selecting sites. 
 
Consequently, in selecting sites following the call-for-sites consultation we support 
the Council undertaking viability assessment in accordance with the NPPF and PPG, 
which will ensure better delivery by allocating sites that are developable. 
 
In addition to ensuring a sufficient supply of developable sites are allocated in an 
adopted Local Plan, the Council should also consider whether the densities of 
proposed developments can be increased to provide additional housing on site.  
Furthermore, the Council should look to ensure conditions attached to decision 
notices are not onerous in requiring details prior to a commencement of 
development, unless it is wholly necessary.  This will subsequently improve delivery 
rates.” 

Page 12



Data and Analysis 
 
15. The Council has analysed a sample of just over 600 planning applications for 

housing received in the period 2000 - 2015 in order to understand the length of the 
planning application determination process and build-out rates once permission is 
granted. 

 
16. On average it takes 2.6 months to determine an application without a Section 106 

agreement and 9.7 months to determine one that requires a Section 106 agreement. 
 
17. On average it takes 10-14 months after permission is granted for construction to 

start.  This is pretty consistent regardless of how many dwellings have been granted 
for the site.  

 
18. Thereafter schemes of 0-4 dwellings take on average 8 months to complete, 

schemes of 5-9 dwellings take on average 11 months to complete, schemes of 10-25 
dwellings take on average 14 months to complete, schemes of 26-100 dwellings take 
on average 16 months to complete, schemes of 101-250 dwellings take on average 
27 months to complete and schemes of 251+ dwellings take on average 33 months 
to complete. 

 
19. On this basis it is possible to state that it takes on average 26.9 months from the date 

that a planning application is received to the date that construction is completed, 
although as indicated above this depends on the size of the site and whether a 
Section 106 agreement is needed. 

 

 
 
20. The Council has separately analysed the timescales for Hatfield Aerodrome, as this 

is the only strategic site (for 2,200 dwellings) that has been built in the borough in the 
last twenty years.  In summary it took 13 months to determine the planning 
application and 11 years for the scheme to be constructed, at an average rate of 
delivery of 201 dwellings per year, with a high point of 435 dwellings in 2003/04, but 
some delays after the 2008/09 recession. 

Page 13



21. This knowledge has fed into the Submitted Local Plan which projects that strategic 
sites at Panshanger, Birchall Garden Suburb, Stanboroughbury and Symondshyde 
will be built-out at an average rate of 150 dwellings per year. 

 
22. At the time of writing, the Welwyn Hatfield Brownfield Land Register 2018 contains 

63 sites with a combined capacity for 2,758 dwellings. 
 
23. At the time of writing, the Welwyn Hatfield Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding 

Register 2018 contains 32 individuals who are seeking a self-build serviced plot. 
 
24. As part of the Local Plan process, the Council is currently updating the Housing and 

Employment Land Availability Assessment (HELAA).  This will be used to determine 
which sites it might be possible to present to the examination inspector for inclusion 
in the Local Plan. 

 
25. The Welwyn Hatfield Annual Monitoring Report 2017-2018 records that there were 

315 net new homes built in the borough and that is 3.63 years of housing land supply 
against the 2016-based household projections.  The average house price has 
increased to £384,500 and is 12.22 times the average lower quartile income.   

 
26. As a result of a planning inquiry into the Entec House site in Woolmer Green which 

took place in September 2018 the Council accepts that it does not have a five year 
housing land supply and that a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
exists.   

 
Performance 
 
27. The Government sets monitoring targets for 70% of ‘major’ applications to be 

determined within 13 weeks and for 60% of ‘minor’ and ‘other’ applications to be 
determined within 8 weeks, although these timescales can be extended in agreement 
with the applicant.  Councils can be designated as failing if they do not meet or 
exceed these targets over a rolling two year period. 

 
28. For clarification, ‘majors’ are schemes of 10+ homes or 1,000+ sqm of new floor 

area, ‘minors’ are schemes of up to 9 homes or 999 sqm of new floor area and 
‘others’ include householder, listed building and advertisement proposals.  The 
planning team also deals with a significant number of ‘non-countable’ applications 
such as prior approvals, discharge of conditions, etc and Welwyn Garden City estate 
management applications. 

 
29. In the two year period from March 2017 to March 2019 the Council determined 94% 

of majors, 76% of minors and 88% of others within these set timescales or by 
extension.   

 
30. The table below shows that performance was strong for major and other applications, 

irrespective of whether they were approved or refused.  It is noted however that 
performance is high for the approval of minor applications but weaker for their 
refusal, at 63%.  The Council offers a pre-application advice service that is usually 
taken up by applicants submitting major applications, but not always by those 
submitting minor applications.  Minor housing and commercial schemes often raise 
local concerns, get called-in by ward councilors for determination by Development 
Management Committee and then get refused.  It is also because minors sometimes 

Page 14

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/brownfieldland
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/selfbuild
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/selfbuild
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/AMR


generate small but challenging issues that officers and applicants seek to overcome, 
but often find that they are too great. 

 
For period: 
March 2017 
March 2019 

Determined 
 

Approved Refused Declined to 
determine 

 

Total Within 
timescale 

Number Within 
timescale 

 

Number Within 
timescale 

Number 

Majors 
 

71 94% 58 95% 12 92% 1 

Minors 
 

331 76% 237 84% 90 63% 4 

Others 
 

1,747 88% 1,347 90% 396 83% 4 

 
Local Plan 
 
31. The Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan was submitted for public examination in May 2017.  

It contained a target to build 12,000 homes in the period 2013-2032, of which about 
half were on brownfield land and half on green belt land. 

 
32. At the time of writing, the Local Plan is still at public examination stage.  The 

inspector has expressed concern that the plan does not meet the objectively 
assessed need for housing and may not be found sound.  He has asked the Council 
to undertake various pieces of work to identify additional housing sites, including a 
further green belt review and another call-for-sites exercise.  The Council is currently 
analysing evidence and reviewing public responses to these new and re-promoted 
sites.  It is intended that results will be reported to councillors in September 2019 and 
that examination hearing sessions will take place in November/December 2019.  This 
should lead to Main Modifications consultation in spring 2020 and adoption by 
summer 2020. 

 
33. The Council considers that it is doing all it reasonably can to progress the Local Plan. 
 
34. A new call-for-sites exercise and public consultation on those sites has ensured that 

the process remains open and democratic. 
 
35. Adoption of the plan and its policies will release land from the green belt and enable 

planning applications to be submitted and approved for allocated sites. 
 
36. In the meantime however the Council is resisting and is likely to continue to resist the 

early consideration of green belt sites.  This is because the inspector has yet to reach 
a view on the merits of proposed green belt sites and to allow all interested parties to 
debate the merits of new and re-promoted sites and understand the cumulative 
implications of sites on their towns, villages and communities.  The Government has 
confirmed that housing need alone is not sufficient to justify development in the green 
belt.  Any planning applications that come forward before the Local Plan is adopted 
will therefore need to demonstrate ‘very special circumstances’ in order to justify 
development within the green belt, even if that land is proposed for release. 

 

Page 15

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/localplanexamination


Other Actions 
 
37. Policy SP7 of the Submitted Local Plan states seeks affordable housing ratios of 

25% in Hatfield, 30% in Welwyn Garden City and 35% in villages.  These targets are 
based on viability evidence that will continue to be updated over the plan period. 

 
38. Policy SP7 of the Submitted Local Plan states that affordable housing will be sought 

on all sites of 11+ new dwellings or 0.5+ hectare sites, subject to viability appraisal.  
This means that market housing can continue to be delivered where the particular 
circumstances of the site make some or all affordable housing unviable.  The Council 
is willing and has recently worked with applicants where there are viability challenges 
but an associated opportunity to secure Homes England funding for affordable 
housing. 

 
39. Policy SP7 of the Submitted Local Plan states that on sites of 100+ dwellings, 2% of 

dwelling plots should be provided to contribute towards meeting the evidence 
demand for self-build and custom housebuilding. 

 
40. The Council is developing its own land holdings in order to increase the supply of all 

types of housing.  This includes the redevelopment of ageing council housing stock 
and underused garage sites. 

 
41. The Council is in the process of creating a housing company that will be better able 

to delivery other forms of social rent that are desirable and affordable for local 
residents. 

 
42. WHBC is part of Hertfordshire One Public Estate initiative which seeks to make best 

use of all publicly owned land, including for housing development. 
 
43. The Council has secured £10.6 million of Homes England accelerated construction 

funding to help deliver housing projects in Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield town 
centres. 

 
44. The Council is part of the Hatfield 2030+ Renewal Partnership which has prepared a 

Development Framework and other documents to help identify suitable sites for new 
housing and other types of development.  As an outcome of this work the Council 
has prepared or is preparing planning applications for a number of sites, including 
High View neighbourhood centre for 146 new homes, 1 Town Centre site for 71 new 
homes and Link Drive car park for 80 new homes. 

 
45. The Council is in the process of updating the Welwyn Garden City Town Centre 

North Supplementary Planning Document and is looking at the potential to deliver up 
to 400 new homes on town centre sites. 

 
46. The Council has allowed taller buildings and higher densities in sustainable locations, 

such as the Wheat Quarter in Welwyn Garden City, which has been granted planning 
permission for 1,454 homes in blocks of up to eight storeys tall. 

 
47. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “Local Planning 

Authorities should consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be 
made acceptable through the use of conditions” but clarifies that “Planning conditions 
should only be imposed where they are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to 

Page 16

https://www.hatfield2030.co.uk/
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/wgcspd
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/wgcspd


the development to be permitted, enforceable and reasonable in all other respects.”  
The Council does its best to ensure that it only applies planning conditions that meet 
these five tests, in response to issues identified by officers or raised by statutory or 
non-statutory consultees.  Officers will continue to think carefully before applying 
planning conditions to housing permissions. 

 
48. The analysis above indicates that it takes on average 9.7 months to determine a 

planning application that requires a Section 106 agreement (compared to 2.6 months 
without one).  The need for a Section 106 agreement normally arises because the 
size or impact of the proposed development warrants affordable housing and/or 
contributions to transport, education, healthcare, etc.  The Council has contract 
arrangements with a legal firm to help progress agreements in as timely a manner as 
possible.  Further complexity can arise where the applicant prepares a viability 
appraisal to seek to demonstrate that the scheme cannot afford its full policy 
obligations.  The Council therefore has contract arrangements with a viability 
consultant so that appraisals can be independently tested.  All of these efforts seek 
to balance the need for speed with the need to ensure that applicants make valid 
contributions to services that will be impacted upon by their developments.  The 
Council will continue to work closely with Hertfordshire County Council to prepare 
Section 106 agreements that involve contributions to their services in as timely a 
manner as possible. 

 
49. As an on-going exercise as part of the production of the Annual Monitoring Report, 

officers will seek to engage with developers who have secured planning permission 
to understand why schemes haven’t come forward as quickly as anticipated. 

 
50. Irrespective of all of the above, officers, councillors, communities and residents all 

want to ensure that housing development is sustainable, high quality and respects 
adjoining land uses and its surroundings. 

 
Projected Results for 2019 
 
51. Based on initial housing completions data for the April 2018 – March 2019 monitoring 

year (which is still being reconciled by Hertfordshire County Council) it is estimated 
that housing delivery test results for 2019 will be about 72%. 

 

 Measured Against Target Actual 
Completions 

2016-17 2012-based household projections 
(annual average 2016-2026) 
 

543.5 671 

2017-18 2014-based household projections 
(annual average 2017-2027) 
 

622.8 315 

2018-19 Standard methodology 867 468 

Total  2,033 1,454 

 
52. This indicates that the Council will have to prepare another action plan by August 

2020 and apply a 20% buffer to our five year housing land supply. 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Part I 
Main author: Matthew McCann 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Northaw and Cuffley 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 1 AUGUST 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

INTRODUCTION OF RESIDENT PERMIT SCHEME AND DOUBLE YELLOW LINES IN 
LAMBS CLOSE, CUFFLEY 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 An existing resident permit scheme has been operating within Lambs Close since 
2000. When parking enforcement responsibility passed to Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council in 2005. Lambs Close is patrolled as with all other public 
highway by the authorised enforcement officers on behalf of Welwyn Hatfield. 
The sale of permits has been being managed by Northaw and Cuffley Parish 
Council. The Parish Council requested that Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
takes on the responsibility for the sales management of the permit scheme, as in 
the same way WHBC run all other public highway permit schemes. The current 
permits issued by Parish Council are handwritten permits, which in the past has 
been open to a small amount of misuse by way of the expiry date being altered 
with a pen. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council since 2017/2018 issue all resident 
parking permits as paperless, and is checked by the enforcement team by the 
vehicle’s number plate meaning the permit expiry date cannot be altered.  

1.2 In order to bring the management of the permit scheme in line with all other 
resident permit schemes managed by WHBC, a new traffic regulation order 
needs to be formally made to set the charges for resident permits as well as 
designate it with a zone code. Within the new Order, it will allow for the first time 
the residents who live within this scheme the opportunity to purchase visitor 
parking vouchers. Currently, any visitors to residents are restricted to no parking 
within the road during the operational hours of 11am to 1pm Monday to Friday. 
This has the potential to cause a level of isolation for those who could be partially 
housebound.  

1.3 In February 2019 Parking Services consulted all residents within Lambs Close to 
offer the opportunity to make changes to the enforcement days and hours whilst 
the Traffic Regulation Order required was being designed. Residents were 
surveyed to see if any supported change of days or times to the current permit 
bays. Eighteen responses were received, with no majority in favour of making 
any changes to the days and times. During the consultation, several respondents 
highlighted the sets of 6 parking bays on the west of the road which are currently 
separated by short sections of single yellow lines. It was proposed when creating 
a new Traffic Regulation Order to recreate the parking bays within their current 
start to finish limits, but removing the yellow lines between the bays to increase 
the parking scope to 8 parked vehicles in that section of road. This would give 
better parking provision outside of parking restriction hours. On previous visits by 
Parking Services Officers, the permit bays were often observed as underused 
during the restriction period.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



2 

 

1.4 As part of the remedial work to create the Order, it has been identified that the 
single yellow lines still left in situ from 2000 are in sections of the road where it is 
not suitable for parking. This is due to the width of the road in those places will 
only allow parking on one side, otherwise a road obstruction could be caused.  

1.5 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. A total of 82 residents have 
been consulted. One objection has been received and shown within this report. 
See Appendix A. 

1.6 The Council can amend proposals once advertised, as long as they make the 
scheme less restrictive. This can be done without having to re-advertise the 
Traffic Regulation Order. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Panel consider the objection received in 4.1 and in particular the issues 
raised in Section 15 around equalities and diversity and having considered all the 
detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating actions, 
recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the amended proposals (Appendix C) 
and the creation of the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for all the reasons set out 
in this report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The response to the survey for changes to the current permit scheme days and 
times from the road was 18 from 82 residents. The survey was seeking opinions 
on any changes required before a new Traffic Regulation Order was made to 
bring the TRO in line with the Council’s other permit schemes. Of the 18 
responses, 13 wanted to keep it as Monday to Friday and 10 wanted to see no 
changes made to the times (11am to 1pm) 

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) 

3.2 On the 12th June 2019 the public notice proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Lambs Close, Cuffley) (Restriction of Waiting and Permit Parking 
Zone) Order 2019 was advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were 
also erected in the lengths of roads affected. The closing date for formal 
objections was Friday 5th July 2019. See Appendix B 

4 Objections 

4.1 There has been one objection pertaining to Lambs Close, and the proposal for 
resident permit scheme and double yellow lines Order. See Appendix C for the 
plans.  

Below is a summary of the grounds for objection. 

a) Houses 49 and 50 have been included in the addresses of those 
eligible to purchase permits. Those two dwellings have ample parking 
available off road and should be excluded and treated as are The 
Brooks. 

Page 20



3 

 

b) You are proposing 240 visitor vouchers per year to all eligible 
addresses at a daily rate of 50p…. it is not hard to see how easy it is to 
pass on these vouchers and make a profit. 

c) I suggest the maximum number of 240 should be reduced. 20 is more 
than adequate for most people and you have discretionary powers to 
issue special permits if more are necessary. 

d) At present there is more than enough room for another parking spot. 

4.2 The reasons for moving forward with the proposals for a resident permit scheme 
and double yellow lines Order are as follows: 

4.2.1 Responses to 4.1 

a) At time of creating the Traffic Regulation Order, the section of road 
where 49 and 50 are due to be sited was under construction and it was 
not clear how much off street parking would be available by the end of 
construction. It was not highlighted during the survey stage any issues 
regarding the properties being eligible. If the new properties do have as 
much off street parking as mentioned by the objector, it is highly likely 
the properties will not apply for resident parking permits, therefore not 
utilising the option available to buy any permits, and would not create 
any additional vehicles onto the public highway. Based on previous 
experience, residents only buy resident parking permits if they require 
to park upon the public highway, not if they have sufficient space to 
park off road at their property. Any changes to remove properties from 
an eligible address list would need to be consulted upon and a new 
Traffic Regulation Order creating to amend the list as it would make it 
more restrictive (by way of restricting it by 2 less properties).  

b) At the current time, all resident permit schemes within Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough limit residents to 240 visitor vouchers within a 12 month 
period. Some residents may be housebound and wish to buy vouchers 
for their visitors to reduce social isolation, as well as residents requiring 
them for tradespeople to carry out works. We run 14 other permit 
schemes within a 5-10 minute walk of a railway station and there has 
been no clear indications that visitor vouchers have been misused. 
When permit applications are made, we can see the number of 
vouchers purchased, and within our terms and conditions it states “I 
understand that any visitor vouchers issued to me by the Council is only 
given to visitors visiting my household”. Any residents found breaching 
these conditions could be subject to limitations on purchasing any 
further vouchers, and if in possession of paperless vouchers could have 
them cancelled and removed immediately.  

c) As mentioned, we offer the same allocation across ALL resident permit 
schemes of 240 visitor vouchers per year. It could be seen as 
discrimination against residents in Lambs Close if we do not offer the 
same allowances as all of our other 37 permit areas. Some residents 
may be partly housebound and wish to buy vouchers for their visitors to 
reduce social isolation, as well as requiring them for tradespeople to 
carry out works. The discretionary special permits mentioned are 
relating to permits for family and friends who carry out personal and 

Page 21



4 

 

medical care duties for residents and not used for the purpose of 
residents who require additional visitor vouchers. Limiting vouchers to 
20 per year may impact on other residents who require vouchers 
outside of the limits of personal and medical care by friends and family 
such as tradespeople or social occasions. 

d) By removing the single yellow lines between the current parking bays it 
will create space for an additional 2 vehicles. Parking Services Officers 
observed on many occasions, spare capacity in the road during the 
restriction’s days and times; often during the weekday mornings and 
afternoons. The additional spaces will serve for out of restriction hours 
or at peak time for additional visitors. Navigation space still needs to be 
left available upon the highway for emergency services vehicles to 
successfully navigate the whole road, as well as refuse collection 
vehicles without impediment. Introducing additional spaces outside of 
the current bay limits could cause vehicle flow issues.  

5 Legal Implication(s) 

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report. 

6 Financial Implication(s) 

6.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through 
existing Parking Services revenue and capital budgets. 

6.2 Based on Cuffley and Northaw information the Council can anticipate an income 
of approximately £1,500 from the sale of the permits 

7 Risk Management Implications 

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned road could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads.  

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 
discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will 
investigate and carryout the appropriate remedial action. 

7.3 The amount of yellow lining and parking control continues to increase, and this 
increase may in due course require additional budget to ensure lining and 
signage is appropriate for enforcement. 

8 Security & Terrorism Implications 

8.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

9 Human Resources 

Page 22



5 

 

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report. 

 

10 Communication and Engagement 

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes 
consulting directly with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, 
such as the local councillors, the county councillor, Police and Hertfordshire 
County Council. From this group of consultees, we received a confirmation from 
the Police expressing no concerns. 

10.2 In addition, Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 

10.3 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing 

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the 
proposals in this report 

12 Procurement Implications 

12.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

13 Climate Change Implication(s) 

13.1 There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in   
this report. 

14  Link to Corporate Priorities 

14.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and 
Enhance the Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver 
Effective Parking Services 

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services; 

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money 
 

15 Equality and Diversity 

15.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out.  

15.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for negative impacts on Age, Pregnancy 
and Disability. The double yellow lines will prevent parking where parking is not 
encouraged due to width restrictions in the road, which may force some motorists 

Page 23



6 

 

to park further away from their destination. Parking Services believe however that 
the benefits gained from double yellow lines far outweigh any dis-benefits as it 
enhances the safe navigation of the highway for all. There is a positive impact for 
all by the creation of additional space on the west of the road where the yellow 
lines between the bays for 2 extra vehicles.  

15.3 Disabled drivers with a valid blue badge are however allowed to park on double 
yellow lines without a loading prohibition for up to 3 hrs where it is safe to do so 
without causing obstruction to traffic. Disabled badge holders can also park 
without time limit in any resident permit bay.  

15.4 During the monitoring period (6.2) should any unintended impacts come to light, 
Parking Services will where possible investigate and carryout the appropriate 
remedial action. 

Name of author Matthew McCann 01707 357304 
Title Parking Services Officer 
Date 9th July 2019 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

 

 

Page 24



1

Matthew McCann

From: democracy
Sent: 05 July 2019 16:26
To: Matthew McCann
Subject: FW: Lambs Close Cuffley - Parking Change Proposals

  
  
From   
Sent: 05 July 2019 16:12 
To: democracy <democracy@welhat.gov.uk> 
Subject: Lambs Close Cuffley ‐ Parking Change Proposals 
  
 
WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening 
attachments or clicking links.  
.  
As discussed on the telephone today, please pass to the relevant body 

Many thanks 

 

=============================================================================
======================= 

NOTICE OF INTENT – STATUTORY CONSULTATION 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (LAMBS CLOSE, CUFFLEY)  
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND PERMIT PARKING ZONE) ORDER 2019 

Sir/madam, 

With respect to the above, I wish to lodge the following observations and objections:- 

1.  
Numbers 49 and 50 have been included in the addresses of those eligible to purchase permits. 
Those two dwellings have ample parking available (more than 10 spaces off-road) and should be excluded 
from the permit scheme and treated as are The Brooks. 

2.  
I see you are proposing to allow 240 Visitor Vouchers per year to all eligible addresses at the Daily Rate of 
50p. 
If you consider the Daily Rate for parking at the station of £5.60, it is not hard to see how easy it is to pass 
on these vouchers and make a tidy profit. 
I would suggest that the Maximum number of 240 should be reduced.  
20 is more than adequate for most people - and you have the discretionary powers to issue Special Permits if 
more are necessary. 

3.  
I am pleased to see that you are proposing to rationalise the somewhat idiosyncratic nature of the short 
parking spaces, shorter single yellow lines and the proliferation of signage posts along the west side of 

Appen
dix 

A

Page 25



2

Lambs Close. 
It has long been a source of worderment as to who/how/why/cost?? . . . . . . 

You have not been specific in the nature of the proposed changes to these spaces and I should like to point 
out the following in this respect. 
The boundaries of the current parking spaces at the south end of Lambs Close allow for the passage of 
emergency vehicles. 
I would suggest that no more space is needed at the north end.  
At present, there is more than enough room for another parking spot. 
I am sure this is what you intend, but without detailed proposals, I felt it should be covered. 

I trust the above will be included in your deliberations. 

My Regards 

 Lambs Close, Cuffley. 

Appen
dix 

A

Page 26



1 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (LAMBS CLOSE, CUFFLEY) (RESTRICTION OF WAITING 
AND PERMIT PARKING ZONE) ORDER 2019 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to arrangement made with 
Hertfordshire County Council) proposes to make the above Order under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 
to introduce restrictions in Lambs Close, Cuffley as specified in the Schedule(s) to this Notice. 
 
Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Order, the plan and the statement of reasons which 
may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City or viewed at www.welhat.gov.uk from Wednesday 12th June 2019. 
  
General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Mr Matthew McCann , Parking Services 
Officer, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City AL8 6AE (01707 357000); email 
parking@welhat.gov.uk  
 
Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn 
Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE by Friday 5th July 2019, stating the grounds on which they are made.  
 
SCHEDULE 1: No Waiting at any time Restrictions - those sections of road(s) listed below as set out 
in the Order and accompanying plans  
 
Parts of Lambs Close 
 
SCHEDULE 2: Permit Parking Places, Zone E05 Monday to Friday 11am – 1pm – those sections of 
road(s) listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 
 
Parts of Lambs Close  
 
SCHEDULE 3: Eligible Addresses for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Road Zone Code Eligible addresses 
Lambs Close  E 05 Numbers 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,12A,12B,12C,12D,12E,12F, 

12G,12H,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24,24A,24B,24C, 
24D,24E,24F,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,36A,36B, 
36C,36D,36E,36F,37,38,39,40,41,42,43,44,45,46,47,48,48A, 
48B,48C,49 and 50 

Station Road E 05 Numbers 48,50,52 and 54 
 
SCHEDULE 4: Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Permit Type Limit 
Resident Permit No limit 
Resident Permit for motorcycle No limit 
Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of 2 vehicle registration numbers 
Visitor Voucher Minimum purchase 20 Daily Vouchers 

Maximum purchase 240 days per year 
Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 
Special Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

 
SCHEDULE 5: Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Application Type Charges 
Resident Permit for disabled driver First vehicle permit free 
Resident Permit for motorcycle £10 per annum 
Resident Permit for first car £25 per annum 
Resident Permit for second car £40 per annum 
Resident permit for third or subsequent cars £60 per annum 
Business permit £225 per annum 

Appen
dix 

B

Page 27



2 
 

Visitor Voucher 50p per day or 25p per day to residents receiving state 
pension 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit £20 
Special Permit Charged at council’s discretion 

Administration Type Charges 
Refund Parking Permit and Vouchers £5 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5 - Whole Books of Paper Vouchers only 

 
SCHEDULE 6: Refunds 
 

Permit Type Refund 
Resident permit for motorcycle Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for first car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for second car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for third or subsequent cars Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Business permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only 
Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Special Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

 
*The charges may be amended by the Local Authority giving notice in accordance with section 46A of the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  
 
Ka Ng 
Corporate Director 
Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
 
12th June 2019 
 
Consulting on this scheme is a statutory duty of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. Any personal data you provide 
in responding to this Notice will be treated as confidential but will be shared with WHBC Officers; Borough 
Councillors and contracted third parties who are involved in the statutory process. We will not share identifiable 
data with third parties outside of the statutory process. Guidance on your rights in respect of personal data are 
published in the Privacy Policy on our website, www.welhat.gov.uk  

Appen
dix 

B

Page 28

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


Appen
dix 

C

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
All wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 1 AUGUST 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD LOCAL PLAN TIMETABLE 
 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan has been submitted and is currently undergoing 

public examination by an independent inspector.  The inspector has indicated 
that the plan does not currently meet the objectively assessed need for housing. 
 

1.2 The Council has therefore carried out a further call-for-sites exercise and 
published those sites for public consultation, before deciding whether to select 
new sites any for inclusion in the Local Plan. 
 

1.3 The timetable agreed in March 2019 was that the results and recommendations 
of this process would be presented to councillors in September 2019 and the 
further hearing sessions would take place in November/December 2019.  The 
unexpected receipt of 10,000+ representations to the public consultation in 
addition to site analysis work and updating evidence has unfortunately created 
too much work to be achieved in this time. 
 

2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Panel notes: the unexpected workload generated by 140+ sites 

promoted as part of the call-for-sites exercise; the unexpected workload 
generated by 10,000+ representations received as part of the public consultation 
on these sites; and the issues raised by examination inspectors in recent letters 
to North Herts and St Albans councils regarding their Local Plans. 
 

2.2 That the Panel accepts that it would be negligent to receive incomplete 
information in September and that all of the above issues necessitate an 
extension of the Local Plan timetable to allow sufficient time to fully understand 
the views of residents, site analysis and new evidence. 
 

2.3 That the Head of Planning and Planning Policy & Implementation Manager 
contact the Programme Officer to explain the situation and seek the views of the 
Examination Inspector, with the intent of identifying a new timetable, and then 
report back to this Panel. 
 

3 Explanation 
 

3.1 This Panel received a report in March 2019 which recommended a way forward 
and timetable to progress the Local Plan, based on the fact that 140+ sites were 
promoted as part of the call-for-sites exercise, which far exceeded expectations.  
Paragraph 3.6 set out all of the work that needed to achieve this, including new 
evidence, analysing sites, reviewing consultation responses and scenario testing. 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



3.2 The Panel agreed that public consultation on sites would take place after local 
elections in May 2019 and that the presentation of results and recommendations 
would be scheduled for September 2019 and examination hearing sessions in 
December 2019.  This was based on a request from the examination inspector 
that the Council look to proceed with the Local Plan as quickly as possible.  It 
was also acknowledged in the March 2019 report that there are a number of 
dependencies and unknowns which could result in slippage. 
 

3.3 The Council has received about 10,200 representations to the public consultation 
on the promoted sites.  In some cases these are relatively short statements and 
others are long, complex submissions with associated technical evidence.  All of 
them need to be read, summarised, redacted where necessary and uploaded to 
the online portal.  At the time of writing in late July 2019 it has taken about two 
months to work through about 4,000 representations.  The Planning Policy team 
is therefore employing additional agency staff to speed up this process, but it will 
nevertheless take about two more months to complete the task.  As a result it is 
not possible to present a full summary of the issues raised by residents and 
others to councillors in September 2019.  It is more realistic that this could be 
achieved by November 2019.  The planning system emphasises the importance 
of public consultation in order for a plan to be found sound and it is important that 
councillors understand what communities think about each promoted site as part 
of the site selection process. 
 

3.4 The examination inspector for the North Herts Local Plan has recently written to 
that Council to advise that further hearing sessions are necessary in light of new 
evidence presented to him as part of the Main Modifications consultation stage, 
including fundamental issues such as the Objective Assessment of Need for 
Housing and green belt evidence.   
 

3.5 The examination inspectors for the St Albans Local Plan have recently written to 
that Council to more fully understand the evidence gathering that has taken place 
to justify a green belt review and the assessment of individual sites. 
 

3.6 Officers consider that they have already been through this process by virtue of 
our examination inspector asking the Council to commission a Stage 3 Green 
Belt Review and the recent review of the Objective Assessment of Need for 
Housing and plan period in light of the Government’s 2016 household and 
population projections, which was presented to this Panel in July 2019.  These 
letters nevertheless emphasises the continued importance of evidence to justify 
any decisions. 
 

4 Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The work to be carried out will be done in accordance with national legislation 
and guidance concerning the preparation of local plans. 
 

5 Financial Implications 
 

5.1 The financial implications associated with this report will be borne by the planning 
policy team budget and money ring-fenced for the cost of the public examination. 
 

6 Risk Management Implications 
 

6.1 The Council received 140+ promoted sites as part of the call-for-sites exercise 
and 10,000+ representations to the call-for-sites public consultation.  Despite 

Page 32



best efforts it is not going to be possible to update evidence, analyse all of the 
sites and summarise all of the representations in sufficient time to present results 
and recommendations to councillors in September 2019.  It is more realistic that 
this could be achieved by November 2019. 
 

6.2 The risk management implications of presenting incomplete evidence is that 
councillors do not have a full understanding of the issues in order to identify 
additional sites for submission to the examination inspector.   
 

6.3 The risk management implications of spending longer on this stage of work is 
how the examination inspector wants to deal with the extension of time and the 
rescheduling of hearing sessions.  This is something that the Head of Planning 
and Planning Policy & Implementation Manager will discuss with the programme 
officer. 
 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 
 

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with this report. 
 

8 Procurement Implications 
 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this report.  The planning 
policy team has sufficient budget to commission any required evidence. 

 
9 Climate Change Implications 

 
9.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this report.  Wider 

matters related to climate change will be considered as part of the individual and 
cumulative analysis of sites and the wording of planning policies. 
 

10 Human Resources Implications 
 

10.1 The Planning Policy team has taken on a number of agency staff to help work 
through the 140+ promoted sites and 10,000+ representations that have been 
received in response to the call-for-sites public consultation.  At the time of 
writing in late July the team has summarised and upload about 4,000 of these. 
 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications 
 

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications associated with this report.  Wider 
matters relating to health and wellbeing will be considered as part of the 
individual and cumulative analysis of sites and the wording of planning policies. 
 

12 Communications and Engagement Implications 
 

12.1 The Planning Policy team will send a Local Plan e.newsletter to all statutory 
bodies and everyone in the public examination process setting out any new 
timetable for the preparation of the Local Plan and will also use other 
communication tools such as press releases and social media to advise of any 
changes to the timetable. 
 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 
 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Priority 2 Our Environment to enhance our green spaces, Priority 3 

Page 33



Our Housing to plan for current and future needs and provide more affordable 
homes and Priority 4 Our Economy to promote investment and regeneration, 
revitalise our neighbourhood and town centres and support sustainable economic 
growth. 
 

14 Equalities and Diversity 
 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 
 

Name of author Colin Haigh 
Title Head of Planning 
Date July 2019 
 
Background Papers: 
 
“Local Plan – Next Steps” report to CPPP 7 March 2019 
http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=879&Ver=4 
 
Examination inspector letter to North Herts District Council 9 July 2019 
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/sites/northherts-
cms/files/ED166%20Inspector%20letter%20to%20the%20Council%209%20July%2020
19.pdf 
 
Examination inspector letter to St Albans City & District Council 2 July 2019 
https://www.stalbans.gov.uk/Images/ED23%20%20SACDC%20Inspectors'%20letter%2
0to%20Council%202%20July%202019_tcm15-67653.pdf 

Page 34

http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=879&Ver=4
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/sites/northherts-cms/files/ED166%20Inspector%20letter%20to%20the%20Council%209%20July%202019.pdf
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/sites/northherts-cms/files/ED166%20Inspector%20letter%20to%20the%20Council%209%20July%202019.pdf
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/sites/northherts-cms/files/ED166%20Inspector%20letter%20to%20the%20Council%209%20July%202019.pdf
https://www.stalbans.gov.uk/Images/ED23%20%20SACDC%20Inspectors'%20letter%20to%20Council%202%20July%202019_tcm15-67653.pdf
https://www.stalbans.gov.uk/Images/ED23%20%20SACDC%20Inspectors'%20letter%20to%20Council%202%20July%202019_tcm15-67653.pdf

	Agenda
	7 HOUSING DELIVERY TEST ACTION PLAN
	7a - CPPP HDT Action Plan Appx

	8 INTRODUCTION OF RESIDENT PERMIT SCHEME AND DOUBLE YELLOW LINES IN LAMBS CLOSE, CUFFLEY
	8a - Lambs Close Obj Appendix A
	8b - Lambs Close Appendix B
	8c - Lambs Close Appendix C

	9 SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION



